

RESOLUTION 25-27

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING RESOLUTION 20-68 FOR THE CITIZEN CLIMATE ADVISORY COMMITTEE TO UPDATE MEMBERSHIP; UPDATING THE RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES THEREOF; ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES AND RULES FOR A YOUTH MEMBERSHIP, ELECTIONS, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE; PROVIDING FOR BYLAWS TO GUIDE THE OPERATION THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the County officially acknowledges the existence of a global climate emergency;

WHEREAS, the impacts and risks of the climate crisis include increased frequency and intensifying extreme weather events, including those that Alachua County is particularly vulnerable to, such as flooding, drought, and wildfires; and,

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2019, the County Commission directed staff to develop a Local Climate Mitigation and Adaptation Action Plan hereinafter referred to as the “Climate Action Plan” by the end of 2020; and,

WHEREAS, on November 5, 2019, the County Commission moved to create a Climate Advisory Committee to provide recommendations to staff and the commission on what should be included within the Climate Action Plan and other climate strategies and policies; and,

WHEREAS, the County Commission approved Resolution 2020-68 establishing the Citizen Climate Advisory Committee;

WHEREAS, the County Commission recognizes that a regional approach is necessary to develop a functional Climate Action Plan in collaboration with non-profits, public agencies, other local governments, universities, and similar resiliency groups throughout the state; and,

WHEREAS, building a climate-resilient and adaptive community will have a positive impact on

the health and wellbeing of residents, and will offer protections from adverse potential consequences of climate change to Alachua County's people, ecosystems, and economies; and, WHEREAS, climate change poses disproportionate impacts on low-income communities, communities of color and other vulnerable populations that have fewer resources to cope with these disruptions; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners recognizes the critical importance of coordinating a climate change response with the City of Gainesville, the county's largest urban center and county seat; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners, the City of Gainesville, and other municipalities within Alachua County are endeavoring to expand the role and responsibilities of the Joint Water Policy Committee to include climate change under a new name, the Joint Water and Climate Policy Board (and referred to as such in the remainder of this resolution), to further coordinate a County/City response to climate change; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners recognizes the importance of including a voice for our youth and younger generations on addressing our climate concerns and strategies,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners, in collaboration with the Gainesville City Commission and other municipalities within Alachua County, desire to name and establish the responsibilities and procedures of the Citizen Climate Advisory Committee,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Section 2 of Resolution 20-68 is amended as follows:

Section 2. Membership and Qualifications. The Advisory Committee shall be composed

of eight (8) voting citizen members, one (1) voting youth member age 16-21, and one citizen member alternate appointed on an at-large basis. The Joint Water and Climate Policy Board shall select and appoint the voting citizen members, alternate, and youth member. Successful citizen candidates should have community or technical experience in climate change, resiliency, natural infrastructure-based adaptation, or mitigation.

Section 2. Section 3 of Resolution 20-68 is amended as follows:

Section 3. Appointments. The Joint Water and Climate Policy Board shall annually appoint citizens who have an interest in climate issues to serve on the Advisory Committee. Members of the Advisory Committee shall serve three (3) year terms of office each; provided, however, that three (3) of the initial appointments shall be for a term of one (1) year, three (3) of the initial appointments shall be for a term of two (2) years, and three (3) of the initial appointments shall be for three (3) year terms, and thereafter all appointments shall be for three (3) year terms. A youth representative shall be appointed for a one (1) or two (2) year term and thereafter on a one (1) or two (2) year appointment. An alternate shall also be appointed for (1) to (3) years and have the ability to vote when one or more voting members are not present. Future vacancies created in the Advisory Committee membership may be filled by appointment of the Joint Water and Climate Policy Board to the term(s) remaining of the vacated member(s). Terms of members appointed to fill partial terms of less than 1 year may be extended for one additional three (3) year term at the end of the initial partial term. Members may be re-appointed by the Joint Water and Climate Policy Board to succeed themselves according to the procedures in the Alachua County Board of Commissioners Rules of Procedure for Meetings. Modifications

to the rules of succession may be approved by a majority vote of the Joint Water and Climate Policy Board.

Section 3. Section 5 of Resolution 20-68 is amended as follows:

Section 5. Operations. The Advisory Committee shall be guided by the by-laws adopted by the Advisory Committee and except as may be provided by these by-laws, questions of order, the methods of organization, and the conduct of business of the Committee shall be governed by The Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure (formerly known as Sturgis Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure) in all cases for which they are applicable. The by-laws shall include the following provisions consistent with the sections of this resolution.

5.1. Elections. The Advisory committee shall annually elect one of its members as Chair, one as Vice-Chair, and one as Secretary. Elections shall be held on October 1<sup>st</sup> of each year or as soon thereafter as practicable. The Chair shall preside and conduct the meetings according the Rules of Order specified in Section 5.6 below. The Vice-Chair shall act in the absence of the Chair. The Secretary shall be responsible for recording minutes for all meetings of the Advisory Committee. Officers shall serve for a period of one (1) year or until their successors are elected. The terms of the officers shall begin immediately upon election to office. Vacancies in offices will be filled by election at the next regular meeting following the date the vacancy occurred.

5.2. Meetings. The Advisory Committee shall meet at least quarterly. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or Vice-Chair, or by any three (3) voting members of the Advisory Committee (through the Secretary of the Advisory Committee) upon forty-eight (48) hours written notice to all members, and to the committee staff liaisons. All meetings shall be

open to the public.

5.3. Agenda. The Chair shall be responsible for the meeting agenda. There will be two staff liaisons to aid the Chair in preparing and distributing the agenda and in relaying Advisory Committee requests or action items to appropriate staff representatives within the County, Gainesville, or other municipalities within Alachua County. The Environmental Protection Department Director or designated representative shall function as one of the committee staff liaisons. The City of Gainesville City Manager, the Gainesville Regional Utilities General Manager, or designated representative shall function as the other liaison. The agenda, except for special meetings, shall be emailed to each member of the Advisory committee at least five (5) days prior to the next meeting date. The committee staff liaisons may place an item on the agenda by notifying the Chair prior to the preparation of the agenda.

5.4. Subcommittees. Permanent or ad-hoc subcommittees shall be appointed by the Chair, when necessary, as determined by the Advisory Committee or by the Chair.

5.5. Quorum. A simple majority of the Advisory Committee shall constitute a quorum. Recommendations and decisions of the Advisory Committee must be made by a majority vote of those present and voting. When a quorum is not present, the Advisory Committee may not take official action but may meet as an informal workshop. The alternative may vote if at least one voting member is not present. When meeting as a workshop the attendance shall be recorded and minutes shall be recorded.

5.6. Rules of Order. All meetings of the Advisory Committee and Subcommittees shall be conducted according to the approved rules of order procedures in the Alachua County Board of County Commissioners Rules and Procedures. Modifications to the

rules of order may be approved by a majority vote of the Advisory Committee. Subcommittee meetings will be conducted according to these rules of order except where modification of such rules is required and approved by a majority vote of the subcommittee because of the nature of the work to be accomplished.

5.7. Attendance. The Environmental Protection Department Director or the designated representative and the City of Gainesville City Manager, the Gainesville Regional Utilities General Manager, or designated representative shall function as the committee's two staff liaisons and attend all meetings of the Advisory Committee, but shall not vote on any matter. The attendance policy for the Advisory Committee shall be in accordance with the attendance policy for boards and committees as set forth in the Alachua County Commission's Rules and Procedures. Modifications to the attendance policy may be approved by a majority vote of the Advisory Committee.

5.8. Compensation. Members of the Advisory Committee shall receive no compensation for the performance of their duties hereunder.


5.9. Reports. All meeting minutes and recommendations of the Advisory Committee will be reduced to writing and will be forwarded to committee staff liaisons for any comments. The Advisory Committee reports, minutes and recommendations, shall be sent to the Alachua County Board of County Commissioners and Gainesville City Commission. The Advisory Committee reports, minutes and recommendations, shall be sent to other municipalities within Alachua County upon request.

Section 4. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption by the Board of County Commissioners.

DULY ADOPTED in regular session, this 10th day of June, 2025.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF  
ALACHUA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:   
Charles "Chuck" Chestnut IV, Chair

ATTEST:  
  
J.K. "Jess" Irby, Clerk  
(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

DocuSigned by:  
  
9FF93D92AF02438...  
Sylvia Torres  
Alachua County Attorney











# Item #6b, 25-00395, 06102025-Res2025-27

Final Audit Report

2025-06-12

Created:	2025-06-12
By:	Steve Donahey (asd@alachuaclerk.org)
Status:	Signed
Transaction ID:	CBJCHBCAABAA-Vj6tFMkM2I_XP6v5YD1w06TSj2EfJz

## "Item #6b, 25-00395, 06102025-Res2025-27" History

-  Document created by Steve Donahey (asd@alachuaclerk.org)  
2025-06-12 - 2:12:25 PM GMT- IP address: 216.194.145.253
-  Document emailed to bocchairsignature@alachuacounty.us for signature  
2025-06-12 - 2:14:05 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by bocchairsignature@alachuacounty.us  
2025-06-12 - 3:18:34 PM GMT- IP address: 107.115.227.133
-  Signer bocchairsignature@alachuacounty.us entered name at signing as Charles S. Chestnut, IV  
2025-06-12 - 3:20:14 PM GMT- IP address: 107.115.227.133
-  Document e-signed by Charles S. Chestnut, IV (bocchairsignature@alachuacounty.us)  
Signature Date: 2025-06-12 - 3:20:16 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 107.115.227.133
-  Document emailed to jki@alachuaclerk.org for signature  
2025-06-12 - 3:20:17 PM GMT
-  Email viewed by jki@alachuaclerk.org  
2025-06-12 - 3:21:10 PM GMT- IP address: 216.194.145.253
-  Signer jki@alachuaclerk.org entered name at signing as Jess Irby  
2025-06-12 - 3:31:24 PM GMT- IP address: 216.194.145.253
-  Document e-signed by Jess Irby (jki@alachuaclerk.org)  
Signature Date: 2025-06-12 - 3:31:26 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 216.194.145.253
-  Agreement completed.  
2025-06-12 - 3:31:26 PM GMT